
5:30 PM

6:00 PM

ROLL CALL

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

PUBLIC HEARING

COMMUNICATIONS

MOTIONS &
RESOLUTIONS

CITY OF LOCKPORT
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA

REGULAR MEETING
July 9th, 2025

6:00 PM

Committee of the Whole Meeting

Common Council Meeting

Craig:

Big Ditch Brewing

Graig:
070925.2

Approve bills and payrolls

Fogle Employee Anniversaries
070925.3

070925.1

Lupo:
070925.4

Craig:
070925.10

Fogle:
070925.11

Approve Common Council minutes of
June 25th, 2025 meeting

Approval of Engineering Services for
Pine/LocUGooding DRI Streetscape

Bicentennial Fireworks Celebration

Craig 2023 ln Rem Action, lndex No.
E182194t2024070925.5

Graig.
070925.6

Summer Youth Funding

Kirchberger: Lockport in Bloom
070925.7

Devine: Fall Baseball at Outwater Park
070925.8

Kirchberger: MOA with DHA Union
070925.9

ADJOURNMENT Adjourn meeting lo July 23rd, 2O25



CITY OF LOCKPORT
COMMON COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS

Lockport Municipal Building

Regular Meeting
Official Record

July 9th, 2025
6:00 P.M.

Mayor John Lombardi lll called the meeting to order.

ROLL CALL

The following Common Council members answered the roll call:

Aldermen Fogle, Craig, Lupo, Mullane, Devine, Kirchberger

INVOCATION - Pastor Steve O'Mara

ANNOUNCEMENTS

RECESS
Recess for public input.

070925,1 APPROVAL OF MINUTES

On motion of Alderman Craig seconded by Alderman Lupo the minutes of the Regular meeting
of June 25th are hereby approved as printed in the Journal of Proceedings. Ayes 6.

PUBLIC HEARING

The Mayor announced a public hearing related to the Community Development Block Grant
(CDBG) project supporting Big Ditch Brewing Company at 1 EastAvenue in the City of
Lockport.

The Mayor asked the City Clerk if any petitions or communications relative to the CDBG grant
project were received.

Recess for public input.

The Mayor closed the public hearing.

FROM THE MAYOR
Appointments:

612312025 Larry Bouchard, 532 Pine Street, Lockport, NY 14094 has been appointed to the
Planning Board effective June 23'd, 2025 for lhe completion of a 3 year term to expire
December 31st.2027.



FROM THE CITY CLERK

The Clerk submitted payrolls, bills for services and expenses, and reported that the
Department Heads submitted reports of labor performed in their departments.

Reviewed by the Finance Committee.

Gommunications (which have been referred to the appropriate City officials)

613012025 Dawn and Kyle Lambalzer, "The Bloom Committee", requesting permission to
hold this years' event on Friday July 11th - Sun July 13th.

MOTIONS & RESOLUTIONS

070925.2
ByAlderman Craig:

Resolved, that the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized to issue orders in favor of the
claimants for payrolls, bills and services to be paid on July 1Oth, 2025.

Seconded byAlderman Devine and adopted. Ayes 6.

070925.3
By Alderman Fogle

Resolved, that the Mayor and Common Council do hereby extend congratulations
and appreciation to the following City employees for their years of dedicated service to the
City of Lockport:

Employee
Matthew T. Vosler
Tanner C. Niezsgoda

Years of Service
10

Title
Police Officer
Firefighter5

Seconded by Alderman Mullane and adopted. Ayes 6.

070925.4
By Alderman Lupo:

Whereas, the City of Lockport (City) has received a Downtown Revitalization lnitiative
(DRl) Grant (Contract C1001608) managed by the New York Department of State (DOS) to
fund streetscape enhancements to Pine Street (Project); and

Whereas, the initial phase of the project has been completed from South Street to the
Erie Canal; and

Whereas, the City has until February 28,2027 to complete construction of the next
phase of the project at the Pine/Lock/Gooding Street intersection; and

Whereas, Nussbaumer & Clarke, lnc. (Nussbaumer) provided professional engineering
services for the initial phase of the project and subsequently submitted a proposal dated April
18,2025 to provide professional engineering services for the Pine/Lock/Gooding Street portion
of the project; and



Whereas, DOS has reviewed Nussbaumer's proposal and qualifications and approved
use of Nussbaumer on this project;

Now therefore, be it resolved, that the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute an
agreement with Nussbaumer & Clarke, lnc., B0 Main Street Unit A, Lockport NY 14094 for a
fee Notto-Exceed of $385,768.00, to be fully funded by the DRI Grant, inclusive of the Scope
of Work included in their April 18,2025 proposal to the City for consulting engineering
services. Tasks 1 through 3 shall be approved to proceed immediately and Tasks 4 through 6
shall be approved contingent upon the project progressing to construction.

Seconded by Alderman Kirchberger and adopted. Ayes 6.

070925.5
By Alderman Craig:

Whereas, the City of Lockport has instituted an action ln Rem for the foreclosure of
certain tax liens against various parcels of real property within the City of Lockport, pursuant to
the City of Lockport Charter and Article 11, title 3 of the Real Property Tax Law of the State
New York, and

Whereas, the County of Niagara has a claim for Niagara County tax liens against all or
some of the parcels of real property which are the subject of said action, and

Whereas, the provisions of the Real Property Tax Law authorize tax districts having an
interest by way of tax lien in real property, such as the City of Lockport and County of Niagara,
to enter into an agreement making provision for the sale of real property without public sale
and for the sharing of the net proceeds of such sale between the City of Lockport and the
County of Niagara, and

Whereas, the City of Lockport has tendered to the County of Niagara such an
agreement, which, among other things, provides that the interests of said City and this County
in each parcel and in the proceeds of any sale of such parcel shall be apportioned based on
the fraction that the unpaid taxes, tax liens and other charges accessible against the parcel
owed to or owned by the City and County respectively bear to the total City and County taxes,
tax liens and other such charges, but without reference to the penalties or interest accrued on
any unpaid tax or tax lien, and

Whereas, the proposed agreement is fair and reasonable and allows the County to
avoid the cost and expense of a separate ln Rem foreclosure action against the same parcels,
now, therefore, be it

Resolved, that the City of Lockport Common Council finds and determines that the
proposed agreement, a true copy of which is attached to the Clerk's file copy of this resolution,
is fair and reasonable in all respects and advances the interests of the City of Lockport in its
collection of taxes and tax liens on real property located within the City of Lockport, and it be
further

Resolved, that the Mayor is authorized and directed to execute and deliver said
agreement on behalf of the City of Lockport.

Seconded by Alderman Fogle and adopted. Ayes 6

070925.6
By Alderman Craig:

Whereas, the Common Council previously authorized funding in support of the 2025
Summer Youth Programming at Willow Altro Park through a Memorandum of
Agreement with The Kenan Center, YWCA of Niagara, and Niagara County Youth



Mentoring Services via resolution 052825.11; and
Whereas, the City has identified a portion of unutilized funds in A.8510.545'10

(Community Beautification) that may be reallocated to support this initiative;
Now therefore be it resolved, that the FY 2025 budget be amended as follows.

Expenditures
lncrease
A-7 1 40.54055 Professional Services $4550
Decrease
4.851 0.5451 0 Program Expenses $4550

Seconded by Alderman Fogle and adopted. Ayes 6.

070925.7
By Alderman Kirchberger:

Resolved, that pursuant to their request, the Lockport in Bloom committee is hereby
granted permission to conduct their 22nd annual Lockport ln Bloom "City Garden Tour 2025"
event the weekend of Friday July 11th 6:00pm-10:00pm, Saturday July 12th 10:00am-4:00pm
and Sunday, July 13th, 10:00am-4:00pm, and be it further

Resolved, that permission is also granted to place signs advertising the event in 3 city
parks, Children's Memorial Park on Transit Rd, Locust Street Park and lda Fritz Park.

Seconded by Alderman Mullane and adopted. Ayes 6.

070925.8
By Alderman Devine:

Resolve that pursuant to their request, Men's Senior Baseball League (MUNY MSBL) is
hereby granted permission to use the baseball field at Outwater Park for their Fall season
which includes games on 9/6, 9/13, 9120 and 9127 from 9:30am - 1:00pm contingent upon
them paying the fees established by the City and filing a certificate of insurance with the City
Clerk naming the City of Lockport as additional insured and approval of the schedule by the
Director of Highways, Parks and Water Distribution.

Seconded by Alderman Kirchberger and adopted. Ayes 6.

079025.9
By Alderman Kirchberger:

Whereas, the City of Lockport and the City of Lockport Department Head Association
are parties to a collective bargaining agreement that remains in effect through December 31,
2026; and

Whereas, it was discovered that Department Head Association member Clayton
Dimmick has accrued significant balances of unused vacation, personal, and sick leave; and

Whereas, the City and the Association have reviewed the matter and reached an
agreement to resolve these issues in a manner that addresses Mr. Dimmick's accrued time
and ensures adherence to City policy going fonvard; and



Whereas, the City and the Association wish to document their mutual understanding
through a Memorandum of Agreement, now, therefore, be it

Resolved, that the City of Lockport hereby approves the attached Memorandum of
Agreement with the Department Head Association regarding the accrued leave time and
vacation buyback eligibility of Clayton Dimmick; and be it further

Resolved, that the Mayor and Corporation Counsel are authorized to execute the
attached Memorandum of Agreement on behalf of the City; and be it further

Resolved, that the FY 2025 General Fund operating budget is amended as follows to
reflect the associated vacation buyback expense:

Expenses
lncrease:
A.1490.51010

A.1490.58010
A.1490.58050

Full-Time Wages

FICA
Retirement

$7,497

$574
$1087

Decrease:
4.1900.54775 Contingency $9,158

Seconded by Alderman Mullane and adopted. Ayes 6.

070925.10
By Alderman Craig

Whereas, the Lockport Erie Canal Bicentennial Committee is organizing a series of
celebratory events during the week of September 21 , 2025, in honor of the 200th Anniversary
of the completion of the Erie Canal; and

Whereas, as part of this commemoration, the replica canal boat Seneca Chrbf will arrive
in the Lockport Locks on wednesday, september 241h,2025, marking Lockport as the first port
of call on its historic re-creation of the 1825 cross-state journey; and

Whereas, the Committee has requested use of the Pine Street Bridge as a public
viewing area from 5:00 PM to B:00 PM for the boat's arrival, scheduled at approximately 6:00
PM, followed by a fireworks display at approximately 8:30 PM; and

Whereas, the Committee further requests the closure of Pine Street Bridge to vehicular
traffic from 5:00 PM to 9:00 PM on that date to accommodate pedestrian traffic and ensure
public safety; and

Whereas, local businesses, including Stooges and the Locktender, are in support of the
temporary closure and the planned celebration; and

Whereas, the Lockport Erie Canal Bicentennial Committee will assume all costs
associated with the fireworks display and has requested that the city of Lockport provide
liability insurance coverage for the evening's activities; and

Whereas, the Committee has also requested an open-container provision be in effect
during the public reception on the Pine Street Bridge;

Now, therefore, be it resolved that the Common Council of the City of Lockport hereby
approves the following for Wednesday, September 24,2025:

1 . Glosure of the Pine Street Bridge to vehicular traffic from 5:00 PM to 9:00 PM to allow
for pedestrian use during the Erie Canal Bicentennial reception and arrival of the
Seneca Chief,



2. Permission for a public fireworks display at approximately 8:30 PM, to be funded by
the Lockport Erie Canal Bicentennial Committee;

3. Provision of liability insurance coverage for the event by the City of Lockport;
4. Temporary open-container allowance on the Pine Street Bridge from 5:00 PM to 9:00

PM for the duration of the event, subject to applicable state and local laws and public
safety requirements;

Be it further resolved that the City of Lockport extends its support and gratitude to the
Lockport Erie Canal Bicentennial Committee for its efforts in celebrating this significant
historical milestone.

Seconded byAlderman Lupo and adopted. Ayes 6.

070925,11 ADJOURNMENT

At 6:23 pm Alderman Fogle moved the Common Council be adjourned until 6:00pm
Wednesday, July 23td, 2025.

Seconded by Alderman Devine and adopted. Ayes 5.

EMILY STODDARD
City Clerk



CITY OF LOCKPORT, NEW YORK
Lockport Municipal Building

One Locks Plaza
Lockport, NY 14094

J:ur:'e23,2025

TO: Common Council

Under and by virtue ofthe authority conferred on me by the charter ofthe City of
Lockport, New York, I, John Lombardi III, Mayor of said City, do hereby appoint
Larry Bouchard of532 Pine St, Lockport, NY l4094to Planning Board effective June
23,2025 for the completion ofa three year term to expire on December 31,2027.

Witness by hand and the Seal ofthe City oflockport this 23.d day of June 2025.

cc: L. Bouchard
J. Dool
Clerk



Citv Clerk

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Dawn Lambalzer < lockportinbloom@yahoo.com >

Monday, June 30, 2025 5:55 PM

Sarah Lanzo

IEXTERNALI Lockport in Bloom 2025

June 30. 2025

Kevin Kirchburger, Alderman at Large
Common Council, and Sarah K Lanzo, City Clerk
One Locks Plaza
Lockport NY 14094

Re: Lockport in Bloom July 2025

Would you please place our request for the following on the next meeting agenda of the Common
council:

1. We respectfully request permission to hold the the 22nd annual Lockport in Bloom garden walk on
the weekend of July 1 1th , 6- 10pm 121h 10a-4p, 1 3th 10a-4p

2. We Respectfully request permission to place 3 signs advertising this event in 3 city parks
, Children's Memorial park on Transit rd, Locust st park, and lda Fritz park. Each sign in a garden
bed as to be unobtrusive to mowing.

ln the past 21 years through the generosity of our local sponsors, and the support of our local elected
representatives we have grown this event and now celebrate two decades sharing the love of
gardening in our community. We project an estimated 1500 visitors to Lockport over the 3 days to
enjoy the nearly 3 dozen open gardens that participate .

Thank you for your consideration:
The Bloom Committee:
Dawn and Kyle Lambalzer



City Clerk

From: Kristin Schubring < kschubring@lockportny.gov>
Tuesday, July 8, 2025 2:27 PM

deputyclerk@ Iockportny.gov
cityclerk@lockportny.gov
AP Fund Totals 6/26/25,7 /3/25 SPC RUNS, 7/9/25

To:
Cc:

Sent:

Subject:

Hello,

lnvoices to be approved at the meeting on 7/9/25 are as follows:

Fund A General- 5I4O,877.97
Fund CD Community Development - 527,924.95
Fund CL Refuse & Recycling - 5109,788.37
Fund FX Water - 531,625.68
FundGSewer-58,449.70
Fund H Capital Projects - 5552,924.20
Fund MS Health lnsurance - 572.70
Fund S Worker's Comp - 57,050.00
Total - S878,713.57

Please let me know if you have any questions.
Thanks !

Kristin Bernardi Schubring
Principal Account Clerk
Fina nce Depa rtment
City of Lockport, NY

776.439.6620



City of Lockport Pay Day Register

RAID on

Wthholdings and Ded{ctons
Gross
Imputed Income
Federal

Gross Bas€
610,816i6-

Pay Date Range 05/23125 - 06105125
Pay Batch 06112125

Beneflts Gross Base
Hours Descrlptlon Hours Grossir
BERV - Bereavement 24.OmO 705..18
CMPE 1.0 - Comp Earned @ 1.0 2L4.A7SO .OO

Female Employees ln Pay Batdl 51

CMPU - Comp llme Used
EDAY - Extra Day
FHIE - Floating Holiday Buy Out
FHDE - Floating Holiday Earned
FHDU - Floalng Ho day Used
FISA - FLSA

FMIS - FMIA Slck Used
FMLV - FMLA Vacation LJsed

HOL - Holiday
HOLIDAYPT - Ho day - paft Tlme
LONG - Longevity Payment
OOT - Out of Tltle
OOT OT 1.5 - Out of Tttte OT at
OT 1.0 - Overtlme at Straight 1.0
OT 1.5 - Overtime @ 1.5
oT 1.5 SHIFr r0% - oT @ 1.5
OT 1.5 SHIFT 150/6 - OT @ 1.5
PRSE - Personal E€med
PRSU - Personal Used
REG - Regular
REG PT - Regular part Time
REG SHIFT 10% - Regutar Shift
REG SHIFT 15% - Reguhr Shift
REGS - Regular Seasonal
RETRO OT - Retroactive pay

RGS-Regular-Salary
SAL - Salary
SAL PT - Salary Part Time
SCXE - Slck Earned
SCXU - Sick Used
STIP - Stipend
VACB - Vacation Buy Out -
VACE - Vacation Eamed
VACU - Vacation Used
Total

481.0000 11663.03 RCA
280.0000 9,572.54 Medicare,{(}.0000 1,5.19.64 Nelv york State
457.T100 .OO 3% - RET ERS IIER 6
568.0000 19191,73 3% - REI ERS TIER 6 OT

.0000 103.42 3% _ RET PF TIER 5
8.0000 309.93 3% _ RET PF TIER 5 0T
4.0000 102.81 3.5% . RET ERS TIER 5

761.0000 22,048.32 3.5% - RET ERS TIER 6 OT7.0000 163.37 3.5% _ RET PF TrER 5
.00q) 4,604.94 3.5% _ RET PF TIER 6 OT

628.0000 26,023.38 4.5% - RET ERs TIER 6
4.5000 205.93 4.5% - RET ERS TIER 6 0T

59.0mo 1,869.55 4.5% - RET PF nER 5
1,038.2500 49,730.10 4.5% _ RET pF TIER 6 OT

35.0000 1,703.03 457 % Muction
16.0000 810.49 457 Ftat Do ar Dedu€fion
64.0000 .00 5.75% _ Rfi ERS TrER 5

231.s000 8,s07.14 5.75% _ RET pF TIER 6
11,695,2s00 376,S,t6.81 5,75% - RET pF TIER 6 OT

207.5000 2319.56 6% _ RET ERS TIER 6
160.0000 t092.04 6% _ RET PF TIER 5
208.0000 2015.50 5% _ RET pF TIER 6 OT
236.0000 3f58.00 AF|-AC POSTTA(

.0000 1,704.50 AFTAC PRFTAX
70.0000 .00 ALISIATE POSTTAX

.0000 3,805.51 AI_LSTATE PRErA(

.0000 1,865.37 Ch[d Support - Arnount
2,023.2500 .00 @LoNrAr UFE POSTTAX
384.7500 12,024.79 COLONIAT_ UFE PRETAX

.0000 192.31 FSA PREIA(
80.0000 3,541.39 Heatth Ins 298 Oass 2 pamily

185.9185 .00 Heakh Ins 299 Oass 2 Singte

- lfl,ffio 2Z,TA Heatri Ins 298 Ctass 3 Fa;tV
20,996.4635 $610,816.16 Health Ins 298 Oass 3 Singte

Health tBs 298 Class 4 Fam y

62,368.91
36,942.4
8,639.66

29,r74.07
2,220,31

243.76
511.64
83.58

1,609.07

149.50
2,095,12

178,06

556.26
14.40

1,961.54
197.69

7,LL7,7O

13,235.00
218.72

3,308.68
536.42
zfi,26
216.63

10.83
.186.82

395.68
4n.5A
558.42
990.00

95.21
32.88

708.87
2,8s9.it8
1,352.93

2,7A7.26
885.64
814.05

564,i141.18
s95,U7.07
596,U7.07
575,494,97
74,0ff1.01

4r25.39
L7,D5,,.t7

2,785.85

45,9?3.14
4,27t,74

59,859.85
5,087.41

12,361.41

319.95
43,589.51

4,393,37
105,015.03

.00
3,803.90

57,V2.43
9324.87
4,17r.M
3,510.50

180.52
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
,00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
,00
.00

L2A82,5t
8&718,85
10,078.82

7,326.29

Health Ins 298 Chss 2 Single
Health Ins 298 Class 3 Family
Health In6 298 Class 3 Single
Health Ins 298 Class 4 Famlv
Health Ins 298 Class 4 Slngle
Total

Bancorp Bank
Bank of Akon
Bank of Amerka
BANK OF AMERICA (2)
BANK OF AMERIAA (4)
BANK OF AMERICA (5)
Bank on 8uffalo
Capital One 360
Chase Bank
OEse Bank (2)
Chime

Cluzens Bank
Cornerstone Comm FCl,,

Disco\rer Bank
Encompass Niagara rcU
ESL rcU
EvaBs Baflk

.00

.00

.00

.00

.002,233.50

$154,9r6.45

Employer Taxes Gross Base
rrLA 36,y2.q s9s,u7 .o7
M€dicare 9,639.66 S9s.U7 .07
roril $45,582.10

J&4qdcqmp Gross Basewo*e@
Worl(ers Compensat'ron - Sewer 4282.49 49,215.63
Wo*ers Compensauon - Water 2,490,94 52,293.96
Workers Compensatlon 50% 3 7,4$.n
roEI g2&994.95

Dked De@sib Amount
Armeo forces 6ank L374.57

1,193.61

2377,r5
5,317.t5
1,717,90

1,n319
1,4s0.27
3,029.50
1,2U.22
3,709.45
1,688.40

1s0.00
13,6W,70

12&76830
800.00
175.00

t,322.59
2,848,47

Run by Ashley Brethe*on on 6/tO/2025 9:34:32 AM
Page 142 of 143



City of Lockport I HEREBY CERTIFY that the persons named
in this payroll are €mploy€d 3olely in and have
actually perform€d s|e duth! of positions and

Pay Day Register
Pay Date Range 06/06/2s - 06119/25

Pay Batch 06126125

€l

Female Employe€s in Pay Batch 51

Hours Description Hours Gross

207A Disability - 207A Disability 160.0000 1,822.30
BERV - Bereavement
CMPE 1,0 - Comp Earned @ 1.0
CMPE 1.5 - Comp Earned @ 1,5

CIIPU - Comp Time Used

EDAY - Extra Day

FHDB - Floating Holiday Buy Out
FHDU - Floatjng Holiday Us€d

FLSA - FLSA

HOL - Holiday
HOLIDAYPT - Holiday - Part Time
MIU - Military Time
OOT - Out of Tltle
OOT OT 1.5 - Out of Title OT at
OT 1.0 - Overume at stralght 1,0

OT 1.5 - Overtime @ 1.5

oT 1.5 SHIFT 10% - OT @t 1.5
oT 1.5 SHIFr 15o/o - OT @ 1.5

PRSU - Personal Used

REG - Regular

REG PT - Regular Part Time
REG SHIFT 10Yo - Regular Shift
REG SHIFT 15o/o - Regular Shift
REGS - Regular Seasonal
RET REF1 - Ret Refund Contrib &
RGS"Regular-Salary
SAL - Salary
SAL PT - Salary Part Time
SCKU - Sick Us€d
fiP - Stipend

VACE - Vacaton Earned
VACU - Vacauon Used

Total

15.0000
162.0000
11.0000

657.5000
242.0000

32.0000
558.0000

.0000
777.0000

7.0000
32.0000

741.0000
2.0000

.14.0000

1,091.2500
41.0000
16.0000

145.0000
11,638.2s00

209.7500
160.0000
216.0000
306.0000

.0000
70.0000

.0000

.0000
347.7500

.0000
32.0000

558.5000 18.534.08
18,282.0000 $502036.45

indbated lb{ th€
PAID on

Gross

Imputed Income
Federal
FICA

Medicare

New York State
3% - RET ERS TIER 5
3% - RET ERS TIER 6 OT
3% - RET PF TIER 6
390 - RET PF TIER 5 OT
3.50/6 - RET ERS nER 5
3.5% - RET ERS TIER 5 OT
3.solo - RET PF TIER 6
3.50/6 - RET PF TIER 6 OT
4.50/6 - RET ERS TIER 6
4,5% - RET ERS TIER 6 OT

4.5% - REI PF TIER 5
4.5% - RET PF TIER 6 OT
457 Yo Deduction
457 Flat Dollar Deduction
5.75olo - RET ERS TIER 6
5.75olo - RET PF TIER 6
5.75olo - REr PF TIER 6 OT

6010 - RET ERS TIER 5
5% . RET PF TIER 5
6% - RET PF TIER 6 OT
AFLAC POSTTAX

AFLAC PREIAX

ALLSIATE POSTIAX
ALLSTATE PRETAX

Health Ins 298 Class 2 Single
Health Ins 298 Clasr 3 Family

Health Ins 298 Class 3 Single
Health Ins 298 Class 4 Family

Health Ins 298 Class 4 Single
Total

2,233.50

k$154,s16.4s ir

Withholdinqs and Deductjons Gross Base Benefib Gross Base

434.25
.00
.00

2L,765.55
8,352.13
L,578.54

19,066.65
L74,62

22,474.67
163.37

1,316.20
31,341.16

91.97
1,410.01

52,839.01
1,966.56

ao9.z2
4,!79.83

375,790.53
7,329.26
5,rr7 39
7,202.36
4,815.00

&prss{d

SsiF64s,$

*ip|."se.|g:*
36,550.22
8.548.00.

fu,12*'z*
2,220,13

220.92
511.54

54,35
1,601,23

267.03
2,095,r2

146.95
556.26

22,62
L,748.98

189.21
7,730.97

12,235.00
218.72

3,4r5.4L
387.89
250,26
216.63
75.82

311.t4
395.68
652.76
564.42
990.00

95.21
32.88

170.55

56L,126,73
589,5r8.00
589,518.00
570,152.03
74,003.42
7F64,23

17,054.27
r,81t.72

45,749.05
7,629,76

59,859.81
4,198.86

12,351.39
502.76

38,855.20
4,2O4,78

ro7,u6.97
.00

3,803.90
s9,415.90

6,746.06
4,17t.00
3,610.50
1,263.66

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00
,00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

t2,482.51
88,718.86
LO,O78.82

7,326.29

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

Medicare

Total
589,518.00

Workers'Comp Gross Base

Workers Crmpensation - General 23,224,32 482,49!.75
Workers Compensation - Sewer 2,282,49 49,405,81
Workers Compensation - Water 2,368.L7 56,266,28
Workers Compensation 50q/o 544,32 7,555.81

Total -328.419.30 r!

Dired Deposits Amount
Armed Forces Eank 1,417.98

.00

3,806.s1
1,865.37

10,748.14
192.31

Bancorp Bank

Bank of Akon
Bank of America
BANK OF AIYERICA (2)
BANK OF AMERICA (4)
BANK OF ANIERICA (6)
Bank on Buffalo
Capital One 360
chase Bank

Chase Bank (2)

Chime

Citizens Bank

Cornerstone Comm FCIJ

Discover Bank

Encompass Niagara FCU

ESL rcU
Evans Bank

1,243.59

2,973.37
6,35r.48
1,717.90

1,627.!9
1,330.64
2,955.r7
1,463.34
1,784.05

1,751.83

150.00

14,270.88
L27,020.59

800.00
175.00

1,254.68

3,228.20

.00 Child Support - Amount
COLONIAL LIFE POS'IAX
COLONIAL UFE PRETAX

Flreflghter Llfe Ins
FSA PREIA(
Health Ins 298 Class 2 Family

Health Ins 298 Class 2 Single
Health Ins 298 Class 3 Family
Health Ins 298 Class 3 Single

&qP,*"f
&s*#
sxe-s#
Wa1'29
P5'oq

Run by Ashley Brethertor on 612312025 4i!4i24 PM Page 138 of 139



City of Lockpoft Pay Day Register
Pay Date Range 06/20/25 - 07103/25

Pay Batch 07110125

Female Employees in Pay Bakh 63
Hours Descrlpflon

2074 Dlsability - 207A Disabiltty
EERV - Eereavement

CIAL - Oothlng Allowance
CMPE 1.0 . Comp Earn€d @ 1.0
CMPE 1.5 - Crmp Earned @ 1.5
CMPU - Comp Tlme Used
EDAY . E\tIa Day
FHDB - floatng Holiday Buy Out
FHDE - Floating Holiday E€rned
FHDU - Floatlng Hollday Used
FTSA . FLSA

HOL - Holiday
OOT - Out of Tltle
OOT OT 1.5 - Out of litle OT at
OT 1.0 - Overtlme at Stralght 1.0
OT 1.5 - OveAjme @ 1.5

oT 1.s SHIFT r0% - oT @ 1.5
oT 1.5 SHrFT 15% - OT @ 1.5
PRSU - Personal Used
REG - Regular
REG Pf - Regular part Ime
REG SHIFT l0% - Regular Shift
REG SHIFT 15% - Regutar Shn
REGS - Regular S€asonal
REIRO - Retsoactive Pay
RGS-Regular-Salary
SAL - Salary
SAL PT - Salary Part ltme
SCK PT - Skk Leave part Time
SCKE - SIck Earned
SCKU - Sick Used
STIP - Stlpend
VACB - Vacatbn Buy Out -
VACE - Vacation Earned
VACU - Vacation tlsed
To!al

41,525.00
.00

.00
11,s94.r2
11,710.14
7,893.23

.00
18,825.s8

178.41

2!7.40
26,475,A2

965.70
472,45

48,427.31
1,271.15

1,175.24

b,46L.zs
372A33.25

6,798.80

s,381.88
6,738.39

15,381.38

62,239.93

.00
3,806.51
1,865.37

83.92

.00
11761.03

192,37

5,248,48

.00
1,322.0000 46.136.33

2r,42.4635 9725,397.03

tor the
PAID on

at,,(lrt'l

Whholdlngs and Deductions Gross Base
sross 725,397,03'
hputed Income
Federal

FICA

['ledicare
New York State
3% - RET ERS TIER 5
3% ' RET ERS TIER 6 OT
3% - RET PF TIER 5
3% . RET PF TTER 6 OT
3.5% - RET ERS TIER 6
3.5% . RET ERS NER 6 OT
3.5% - RET PF TIER 6
3.5% - RET PF TIER 6 OT
4.5% - RET ERS TIER 5
4.5% . RET ERS TIER 6 OT
4.5% - RET PF TIER 5
4,5% - RET PF TIER 5 OT

. 457 % Deduction
457 Flat Dollar Huctlon
5.75% - RET EFS TIER 5
5.75% - RET PF TIER 6
5.75% - RET PF TIER 6 OT
6% - RET ERS TIER 6
6% . RET PF TIER 6
AFLAC POSTT'D(
AFLAC PREIAX
ALI TATE POSTIA(
ALISTATE PRETAX

Child Support - Amount
COLONIAL UFE POSTIAX
COLONIAL UFE PRETM
FSA PRETAX

Health Ins 298 Oass 2 Family
Health Ins 298 Class 2 Stngle
Health Ins 298 Class 3 Famfly
Health Ins 298 Oass 3 Singte
Heahh Ins 298 Class 4 Famiv
Health Ins 298 Class 4 Single

Berefits Gross Base

Health Ins 298 Oass 2 Singh 12A82.5L .00
Health Ins 298 Oass 3 Famlly 88,718.86 .00
Health Ins 298 Class 3 Single 10,078.82 .00
Health Ins 298 Class 4 Family 7,326.29 .00
Health Ins 298 Class 4 Single 2.233.50 .00
rotat @/
€mployer Taxes Gross Base
RcA 44,M5,97" 710;4210rI
Medlcare t0.300.99l zto.qzt.os
I otar $54,346.95

y/orl(ers'.Comp Goss Base
Worke6 Compensauon - General 23,829,12 474,8U35
Workers Compensatlon - Sewer 2,282,49 47,888.67
Workers Compensatlon - Water 2,593,7L 55,230.33
Workers ComDensation 50% & 7,501.86
rocl 129,249,6/

Hours Gross
160.0000 ----- 1.s225-
37.0000 1,213.35

.0000
230.6250

2.2500
309.0000
318.0000
200.0000
4s7.1700
604.0000

.0000
8.0000

652.0000
21.0000
21,0000

1,004.0000
25.0000
24.0000

232.0000
11,737.5000

175.2500
158.0000
204.0000
939.7500

.0000
70.0000

.0000

.0000
3.5000

2,OZ2.OOOO

453.5000
.0000

120.0000
150.918s

a,sqg,gt/
44,045,97
10,300.99

32t&3,52
2,308,95

262.33
713,19

28.84
1,614.96

L74,94
2,605.58

183,12
557,07

2.06
2,3t6,99

162.51
4,270.70

12,535.00
2Ia.72

4,L16.26
4W,4
250.26
216.63
311.64
395.68
652,76
568.42
990.00
95.21
32.88

tM.Bl /
2,859..1S1
t,s62.gt I
zlat.za I

ass.6a /
ar.os )
248,L6)

617,587.51
710,421.08
710,421.08
689,61s.38
76,953.95

8,744.44
23,772.38

961.13
46,141.95

4,998.30
74476,L4

s,232.23
12,379.20

45,7t
51,488..r4

3,613.63
r28,657.75

.00
3,803.90

7L,587.61
7,120.9
4,171.00
3,610.50

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00iQ .oo
.|^ .oo(\ .oo

N .ooqo 
.oo
.00

Dired
Forces

Banmrp Bank
Bank of Akron
Bank of America
SANK OF AMERICA (2)
BANK OF AMERICA (4)
BANK OF AMERICA (5)
Baok on Buffalo
Capital One 360
Chase Bank
Chase Bank (2)
Chime

Ctizens Bank
Cornerstone Comm rcU
Dlsco\€r Bank
Encompass Niagara rcU
ESL rcU
Evans Bank

1,434.05

2,522,06

s,857.50
1,717.90

2,173.39

1,708.15

4421.30
1,772.4A

2,145.07

2,039.73

150.00

16,390.27

152,531.13

800.00
175.00

2,12s.fi
4,482,57

Run by Ashley Bretherton onz?gl2lz' Ittt2,tL7 tM
Page 212 of 213



3
City of Lockport Employee Anniversary

Repoft
July

Date Years
1185 , Daniel G

1024 McFall, Michael J

1160 Stopa, Jessica E

1083 Fredrickson, Jon B
1099 Lane, Christopher C

1127 Scapelliti, James M

1042 Cercone. Scott A
rrcz voEei M.t*'"r r ?ol; u. O€lcor
1179 Cutter, Michael D

1300 Radlich, Nicholas A
1333 Niezgroda, Tanner C ff
1451 Bretherton, Ashley C

1452 Leible, HenryJohn
1500 Quinones, Emily R

1543 Russell, Thomas R

1545 Aikin, Victor T.H.
1544 Telemin-Cruz, Rafael A
1548 Yensan, Gregory R
1606 Caldwell, Derek J

1602 Chavers, Simon M
1605 Jones, Xavier Q
1607 Kalbfliesh, Benjamin J

Toial Empfoyees 22

te#gt-I,r

Fire Department
Waste Water Department
Waste Water Department
Fire Department
Fire Department
Fire Department
Building Maintenance

Police Departrnent
Water Distribution
Fire Department
Flre Departrnent
Finance Department
Public Works
Waste Water Department
Police Department
Fire Department
Fire Department
Police Department
Fire Depaftment
Public Works

Fire Department
Fire Department

071t011998
07lrrl200s
07lLol2o06
07lLol2o06
0711012006

0711712006

071201201s

0712712018

07lLsl2oLg
0712712020

0711912021

0713012021

0711t12022
0711412023

071t712023
0711712023

0712112023

071ts12024
07lrsl2o24
0717512024

07lLsl2024

31

27

20

19

19

19

19

10

7

6

5

4
4
3

z
2

2

2

1

1

1

1

Run by Mary Pat Holz on 0210512025 11:54:53 AM Page 1 of 1



ry

z
n

April 18, 2025

Mr. Donnelly, P.F.
Director of Engineering
city of Lockport
on6 Locks PlaTa
Lockport, NY 14094

Rei 2025 Creen Streetscape Project
Professional Services Proposal
Lockport Streetscape lmprovements - Phase 2
File No. 25Pl-OOO9

Dear Mr. Donnelly:

Nussbaumer & Clarke, lnc. (Nussbaumer) ls pleased to submit this proposal to assist the City
of Lockport (city) with engineering services related to streetscape improvements through the
implementation of green infrastructure (Cl) practices. Nussbaumer previously assisted the
City with design of the Phase l Streetscape Creen lnfrastructure lmprovements involving
lnstallation of green infrastructure practices, including bioretention areas and tree pits along
Washburn Street between Walnut Street and South Street; South Street between Washburn
Street and Locust Street; and Pine Street between South Street and the Erie Canal Bridge. The
project was partially funded by the City's Downtown Revitalization lnitiative (DRI) grant.

Per recent discussion between the City and New York State Department of State (NYSDOS),
the City desires to use remaining funds from the Pine Street DRI funds (Phase l) for design of
Phase 2 Green Streetscape Project at the Pine/Lock/Cood ing Street intersection.

The scope of services as detailed below was prepared to support implementation of Phase 2
of 3 phases ofthe Lockport streetscape improvements. Phase I consisted ofthree streetscape
improvement areas along Washburn Street, South Street, and Pine Street, completed in 2023.
Phase 2 consists ofthe Pine/Lock/Cood ing Street intersection, bounded by Caledonla Street,
the Erie Canal, and Ontario Street. A location map showing the proposed project areas and
associated conceptual site plans are shown in the figures in Attachment A. lt is anticipated
that the Citywill pursue additionalfinancing at a later date through the NYSEFC CICP or other
financial means to implement Phase 3 of the project.

Based upon our discussions, Nussbaumer proposes the following Scope of Service for this
project. All services will be performed by Nussbaumer unless as noted.

Bo Ny'ain Street IUnit A ILockport, NY 14094 |t: 716.827.8O00 |ft716.A26.795a
nussclarke.com



Mr. Donnelly, P.E.
City of Lockport
April lB, 2025 ffi
SCOPE OF SERVICES

'L Proiect lnitiation

Meet with City-officials and key stakeholders (i.e. Creater Lockport Development
Corporation and local businesses) as required.
Meet with internal Nussbaumer and subconsultant team to discuss project scope,
budget and schedule.
Perform planimetric and topographic survey of the project area within the City's right-
of-way limits. Survey will obtain information regarding existing structures (i.e.
roadways, catch basins, manholes, buildings, etc.), and utilities (i.e. aboveground and
underground). Develop base maps of the survey and utilities as required for the design.
Thisworkwill be performed by Nussbaumer.
Perform geotechnical subsurface investigation, including lO-ft deep soil borings at
seven locations and adjacent infiltration tests at three Iocations throughout the project
area. A final summary report with all continuous sampling results will be provided. This
workwill be performed bythe WBE-owned subconsultant AtlanticTesting Laboratories
(ArL).

2. Preoaration of Desiqn Drawinqs and Specifications: and Landscape Desiqn Coordination &
Public Enqaqement

Prepare plans, specifications, and contract documents in conformance with City
standards, for review by the City; and upon approval, frnalize the documents.
Meet with the City to review the 600/o,9Oo/o, and final designs; and key stakeholders as
required.
Prepare a detailed engineer's cost estimate.
Prepare a plan view rendering of the conceptual designs, completed by MBE-owned
subconsultant, Popli Design Croup (PDC). lnternal landscape design meetings will be
conducted between PDC and Nussbaumer.
Conduct one initial publlc information session with assistance from PDC. The public
information session will include presentatlon of the project scope, goals, and three
concept alternative plan renderings. The preferred alternative will be selected based on
public feedback.
Conduct one public meeting with assistance from PDC during the 60% design.
Nussbaumer and PDC will present the refined renderings/plans, gather additional
feedback, and address concerns before finalizing design.
Develop a communications plan to relay notices and updates about engagement
activities through the City's website, social media platforms, local news coverage, radio
spots and public access television.

3. Bid Phase Services

Nussbaumer will prepare the bid documents to include in the contractual documents
an itemized bid proposal, and technical specifications for public bidding.
Plans and proposal book will be available to interested contractors using the Buffalo
Copy Store on-line plan room.

Page 2



Mr. Donnelly, P.E
City of Lockport
Apr tl 18 , 2025

Assist the City with the bidding process. Nussbaumer to furnish notice to bidders for
the City to publiciy advertise. Nussbaumer will attend the pre-bid conference,
addressing any questions that contractors may have, and issuing addenda, if necessary.
Attend the bid opening, review the bids received, and provide the bid.

4. Construction Administration

Nussbaumer will conduct a pre-constructlon meeting including the city and the
Contractor and provide meeting minutes.
Review and advise Contractor submittals and pay requests.
Conduct monthly progress meetlngs (four) during construction.
Utilize an email notification system to keep interested individuals informed of the
project. Provide information such as emergency contact information, schedule,
anticipated temporary road closures or loss of service, etc.
Periodic site visits by Construction Manager during construction to ensure that
construction ls being completed safely, and in accordance with the plans,
specifications, and contract documents.

5. ConstructionObservation

Nussbaumer will provide full-time construction observation (96O hours).

6. Closeout and Record Drawinqs

. Nussbaumer will provide as-built record drawings upon project completion.

The standard of care for the professional services performed or furnished by Nussbaumer
under this Agreement will be the care and skill ordinarily used by members of the surveying,
architecture, and/or engineering profession(s) practicing under slmllar circumstances at the
same time and in the same locality. Nussbaumer makes no warranties, express or implied,
under this Agreement or otherwise, in connection with any services performed or furnished
by our company.

Should applicable federal, state, or local laws, codes, rules, regulations and/or standards
change during the course of this project, Nussbaumer reserves the right to renegotiate the
stated fee.

ffi

Page 3



Mr. Donnelly, P.E.
City of Lockport
April 'l8, 2025 ffiT
COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT

Nussbaumer's fee for the Scope of Services described herein, including our subcontractors, is
$385,768. A summary of fees and responsible parties is included in the table below.

It has been assumed that the project will be constructed over a six-month duration in 2026.
Costs shall be billed monthly based upon effort expended by staff on the project at Standard
Hourly Rates in effect. Refer to Schedule A for standard terms and conditions in Attachment
B.

TASK DESCRIPTION
RESPONSIBLE

ENTIry

M\^/BE
UTILIZATIO

N
FEE

l: Project lnitiation

Proiect lnitiataon Nussbaumer $5,O00
Land Survevino NUssh)aLlmer $8 62r
Ceotechnical
lnvestiqation ATL 4o/o $14,268

subtotal $27-AA9

2: Design & Public
Engagement

Prepa ration/coord i

nation of Design
Drawings and
Specifications

Nussbaumer $so,ooo

Civil & Landscape
Design, Drawings,
& Specifications

PDC 26% $99,636

Subtotal $t49.635

3: Bid Phase Services
Bid Phase Services Nussbaumer $6,216
Bid Phase Services PDO s4.o18

subtotal slr]-23'1

4: Construction
Administratioh

Construction
Administration Nussbaumer $33,9r8

Construction
Administration PDC 6% 1 $z+,s+e

Subtotal s58.466

5: Construction Observation
Construction
observation Nussbaumer $132,044

Subtotal s132.O44
6: Closeout and tlecord
Drawinqs

As-built drawinos NussbarJmer $7 500
subtotal t[7.500

TOTAL 36vo $385,768

Page 4



Mr. Donnelly, P.E.
City of Lockport
April 18, 2025

NUSSBAU/|ER & CLARKF, tNC.

#{*{,#*
Chief Executive Officer

-ffi

we,#,

Nussbaumer appreciates the opportunity to submit this proposal and looks forward to
working with you on this project. We are available at your convenience should you desire to
dlscuss any aspect of this proposal.

Upon acceptance of our proposal, please sign where indicated and return a copy to
Nussbaumer. The signed copy will serve as our Agreement and Notice to Proceed. Please
retain the original foryour records.

Sincerely,

Caroline C. Bukowski, P.E.
Senlor Project Engineer

Attachments - A: Figures; and
B: Schedule A V2025 Hourly Rate Table

File-ol (W/att.)c:

Accepted by: CIry OF LOCKPORT

Signature: Tirle:

Printed Name: Date:

Page 5



r;ffi LOCATION MAP
STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS

CIry OF LOCKPORT
NIAGARA COUNry. NEW YORK

EXHIBIT

1

pRn lFcT No ,5lr-nnna



*
a.

, ...

LOCATION MAP
SCALE:1" = 40'

f"ilx.t1.\*1.:
n".::':;,'-

PINE STREET, LOCK STREET,
GOODING STREET INTERSECTION

EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN
CITY OF LOCKPORT

NIAGARA COUNTY, NEWYORK
APRIL 2025

LEGFND

EXIST. RIGHT.OF-WAY

EXISTING STORMWATER

FXIST CONTOUR LINE

---)
EXHIBIT

2



PHASE 2: PINE STREET, LOCK STREET
GOODING STREET INTERSECTION

CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN
CITY OF LOCKPORT

NIAGARA COUNTY, NEW YORK
APRIL 2025

PROPOSEDTREE
PROPOSED BIORETENTION
PROPOSED SIDEWALK
PROPOSED PERMEABLE PAVERS

o#
w
ffm

STORMWATER FLOW PATH

PROPOSED SHRUB

E

EXHIBIT

3

25J1{009



SCHEDULE 'A"

By accepting th is proposa l, the Client ("Client") agrees to the following terms a nd cond itions incorporated into the
resulting agreement ("Agreement") between the Client a nd Nussba umer & Clarke, lnc. ("Nussbau mer") for the work
covered in the proposal ("Work").

BASIS OF SERVICES
lf required, the Client shall arrange or establish Nussbaumer's right to enter the property. lf the Client does not own the
site, Nussbaumer shall require reasonable verification that permission to enter the site has been granted.

Quantities and cost estimates are subject to change due to, but not limited to, actual field conditions encountered,
additions or changes to the Work, and changes in conditions on which estimates were based. The Client acknowledges and
agrees that Nussbaumer was entitled to and did in fact rely on the information provided by the Client in pedorming
estimates concerningthe Work as embodied in this proposal.

DELIVERABLES
Electronic files, drawings, calculations, records, and all other work products generated in connection with the Work are the
property of Nussbaumer and may not be used without written permission. Drawings may be filed with the County or
Municipality if the drawings were produced for that purpose. Electronic files and/or reproducible documents will be
furnished at cost for preparing same and will be noted as a copy. Except for original submittals, any plans ordered or used
in connection with the Work will be billed at cost-

FEES AND D$RA WORK
All fees quoted are for the Work as outlined. Any work not ordered will not be billed. Any work not included in the
Agreement or any additional items which may be necessary to comply with applicable laws, codes, rules, regulations, or
standards made effective after this proposal will be charged as e)ftras on a time and expense basis or at a mutually agreed
upon fixed fee. No extra work will be performed by Nussbaumer unless written approval is received from the Client, and a
fee is negotiated.

It is understood that the fees quoted herein for the Work are subject to change upon written notice to the Cl'ent should
unforeseen complications and/or problems develop during the Work. Any revisions to the Work caused by Client,
lMunicipality, County, Governmental, or Governing Agencies, jurisdictional authorities, permitting agencies, approval
agencies, funding agencies, utility companies, other stakeholders, and involved parties; to the extent they increase
Nussbaumer's costs of performance under the Agreement, shall be billed in accordance with the attached hourly billing
rates, included after Schedule A.

INVOICING AND PAYIVIENT
Nussbaumer shall render invoices to Client monthly as set forth in this proposal. Client shall promptly review invoices and
notify Nussbaumer of any objection thereof; absent such objection in wrlting within fifteen (15) days of the date of the
invoice, the invoice shall be deemed proper and acceptable. lnvoices shall be due and payable in full by the Client to
Nussbaumer within 30 days of billing. lf payment is not received within 60 days of billing, Client shall be considered in
breach of contract and Nussbaumer reserves the right to stop Work under this Agreement, or work under any other
agreement with the Client, until such time that all Work is paid in full, including interest at 1.5% per month commencing at
the 60th day from billing. lf applicable, all outstanding unpaid invoices must be paid in full prior to filing of the l\4ap Cover
with the county Clerk's Office.

No documents will be released unless all fees have been paid for Work completed. The Client agrees that Nussbaumer will
not be responsible for providing copies of records generated for this project in case of loss of records by fire, theft, or other
causes. Copies of the finished product will be furnished upon payment of the cost of reproductions.

It is also agreed and understood that if Nussbaumer finds it necessary to take legal action for collection of any outstanding
amounts due under this Agreement, the Client herein agrees to pay all costs of litigation, including iegal fees, court costs,
filing andlor recording fees as well as costs involving time spent in preparation for litigation andlor legal proceedings.
Should legal proceedings be initiated, it is understood that all proceedings would take place in Erie County, New York. This
Agreement, the Work, and any disputes relating to either the Agreement or the Work shall be governed by the laws of the
State of New York, without regard to conflicts of law rules.

llPage



STANDARD OF CARE
The standard of care for all professional services performed or furnished by Nussbaumer under this Agreement will be the
care and skill ordinarily used by members of the surveying and/or engineering profession(s) practicing under similar
circumstances at the same time and in the same locality. Nussbaumer makes no warranties, express or implied, under this
Agreement or otherwise, in connection with any services performed or furnished by the company.

Any opinions of probable project cost or probable construction cost provided by Nussbaumer are made based on
information available to Nussbaumer and Nussbaumer's experience and qualifications; represents its judgment as an
experienced and qualified professional engineer. However, since Nussbaumer has no control over the cost of labor,
materials, equipment, services furnished by others, contractors methods of determining prices, competitive bidding, or
market conditions. Nussbaumer does not guarantee that proposals, bids, actual project, or construction cost will not vary
from opinions of probable cost Nussbaumer prepares.

Construction cost does not include Nussbaumer's compensation or expenses, the cost of land, rights of way, or
compensation for properties. Construction cost also does not include Clients legal, accounting, or insurance services; or
interest and financing charges incurred in connection with construction, or the cost of services provided by others.

INDEMNIFICATION
To the fullest extent permitted by iaw, and notwithstanding any other provision ofthis Agreement, the total liability, in the
aggregate, of Nussbaumer and its officers, directors, members, partners, agents, employees, and consultants, to Client
and/or owner and anyone claiming by, though, or under Client and/or owner for any and all claims, losses, costs, or
damages whatsoever arising out of, resulting from, or in any way related to the Work from any cause or causes, including
but not limited to the negligence, professional errors or omissions, strict liability, breach of contract, indemnity obligations,
or warranty express or implied of Nussbaumer or its officers, directors, memb€rs, partners, agents, employees, or
consultants shall not exceed the total compensation received by Nussbaumer for the Work. Nussbaumer shall not be liable
to the Client under any circumstances for indirect, special, incidental, or consequential damages, nor shall Nussbaumer be
liable to the Client for lost revenue or profits of any nature or character.

To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Client agrees to indemnify and hold Nussbaumer, along with its current and
future owners, officers, directors, members, shareholders, parent corporations, subsidiaries, related entities, affiliates,
agents, and employees (collectively "lndemnitees") harmless from, against and for all claims by third parties ("Third-Party
Claims"), which are caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of the Client or its employees, agents, consultants, or
anyone acting by, though, on behalf of, or under the Client. Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything else in the
Agreement, the Client's indemnification obligations do not apply to any lndemnitee for any ponion of any Third-Party CIaims
caused by the negligence of such lndemnitee.

CTAIMS AND DISPUTES
All claims or dlsputes of any kind arising out of the relationship between Client and Nussbaumer shall be submitted to
mediation prior to filing suit. All mediation shall be conducted under the Commercial Rules of the American Arbitration
Association, with the mediation costs equally borne between the two parties. The language to be used in mediation shall be
English. Any action filed between the parties shall be filed in the state or federal courts in and for Erie County, New York.
The prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its costs, including reasonable attorneys' fees. lf any part of this Agreement
is found to conflict with applicable laws, such part shall be null and void, but the remainder of this Agreement shall be in full
force and effect.

TERMINATION
The parties agree and acknowledge that there are no verbal representations, promises, understandings or agreements
concerning or relating to the Work other than as contained in the Agreement. All previous negotiations and agreements
between the parties concerning or relating to the Work are merged into the Agreement. Modifications of the Agreement
must be in writing, except to the e>dent that the invoice may include, and Client shall be obligated to pay, fees or expenses
that were orally authorized to proceed promptly with the Work.

This Agreement, unless previously terminated by written notice, shall be terminated by completion of the Work. Termination
before completion shall be accompanied by payment for Work completed to that date at per diem rates set forth in the
attached hourly billing rates.

PROPOSAL PERIOD
This proposal shall be valid for a period of 30 days, after which Nussbaumer shall have the right to revise a ny poftion
thereof. lt is also understood thatfees quoted herein shall be subject to a 10% increase for those phases of Work notyet
completed after a period of one year from date of authorization to proceed.

Schedule A - Revised f ot 2O24 2lPage



ffi}
CORPOMTE OFFICE
3556 Lake Shore Road
Suite 500
Buffalo, NY 14219.1494
Phone; (7'16) 827{000

BRANCH OFFICES
Lockport

North Tonawanda
East Aurora

2025 HOURLY RATE SCHEDULE

Job Title

l!'!nc"jpql Enginggr { P-r!ncipal. Sqrv,eygr

Sr. Associate $205.00
Associate

l!"ojec! M_al?99J. $160.00

$155.00

$140.00

$1 19.00

Sr. Project Enginee

Pfo-jqc! E!9in9et l Architect

Fngi!:'9"9r 2

$175.00

Sr. CADD Designer
.""__. _. ..."$La9_.,99

$147.00

.q,Aq_D $122.00
c^Dg reqlliqiqn . _

Engineering T_echnician . .

$108.00

$93.00
G-lS Technician $93.00
Municipal lnfrastructure Specialisl $114.00

_89!.qw-?ble E!tergy_!4?nqg9l..

_,qlgQ.-0-0

$170 oo

"$,1-4?,"q9

$_:!'!-1,-q0

Water Distribution Specialist 2

Water Distribution Specialist 1

Pjoject Surveyor

$lrvey Tgclf icialt 3 ,

-qttryey Technician 2

9u tv.eJ r-e9nti_c-ian l
l Person

2 Bgr-sgn Survgy Crew

.. ..$qz.go
, $]Iq,qo

,,$?1Lqp.

". ".--$_?-0-'!.,-0"q
2 Person Surve-y Cre{v (P!'gvaififr-g W?gg). 

. $?84,00
Construction Servicgs. Marl?ggl

Construction Adm inistrator
$165:00

$140.00
Transportation Manager $160.00
Cinstructlon Oqgervel 3.

Corlslructi gn Obs€rvgf 2
$124.00

Colstfltclion.Oq9grv"eJ.1 
. ,, $1,9q,0-q

Gl?!:-'t w!:!ter

Administrative Assistant

T-estimony/Court Attelqengg- (aqor. g r,9te for Job Classiflcation - 4 Hour Minimum cta!99) ,$1,,64q,q0_

$120.00

$93.00

. $83 00

Eireqleele
Mileage Cur€nt Federal Rale

at CostElpgnggs s!'l9f .?9 Printing

.S!lpc{nsql!g!t ol Third P€rty Expense
Rates are subject to inicreaie Jiiiary isi year.

ia! c99! pttrg 1ool"e



5
NIAGARA COIINTY A"I'TORNI']Y'S OFFICO
NIACAR4, COUNTY COT,JRTT{OUSI:
175 HAWLEY STR[r"f
I'OCKPORT. NF-W YORK I4094
r? r 6) 439-7105
(? l6) .139-71 l'1 Fax

.lune 6. 2025

Cl*ude A, Joerg
Couny Anarnq

Kathcrine l)- Alexander
Fitst Assistaw

R. Thomas Burgasser
John S. Sansone

Gary H. l.isowski
David W. Koplas
Bradley D. Marble
Christopher Eopst
Assistt nls

Coqxrration Counsel
City of Lockpon
One l"ocks Pla?s
l'ackporl. Nelr, York 14094

Re: Agreement between the Citv of l,ockport, New York
and Coune ofNiagara. New York

Dea.r Counsel:

[nclased herewith please find an original Agreement with respect to the 2024 City of
I.ockpo* ln rern procceding under Index Number 8182194/2024.

lf ;,ou hav-e any questions, please contact the undersigned.

Very truly yours,

K"-*'l',,'; \ " /-t'"&"'*J'-
KATI"IERINE b. ALEXANDER
l-'irst A ssistant County Anomey

ADK&sj



ASREEMENT

Between

CIT]V OF LOCKFORT, NfW YORK

nnd

COUNTY OP NIAGARA, NSW YORK



(Q- --t-
THIS AGRIIIiMENT' mrtic tltis)- da] of ..-.gXaC+- "-' 2025 between

rt,* Cg'y 0f. t-OCKpOrf, Xiliv; VOn( * mun;cipafTorporotictniituate within the

County ol' i\,liagara. Ncw York. hen:inaftcr callcri rhe "CITY", and the COUIT{TY OI:

Nl{nARA. XfW yOnn, being a nrunicipul subdivision of tlre State of New York'

hereinafter called rhe "COtjN'lY"

WITNDS$IiTII:

[fnltxllls, the cl-lY h 5 institutcd an actirin in rem ibr the loreclosure r)fcertain

rax liens againsr ,-arious parcels of land situate within the City of l'ockporl, New York'
pu.ru*, t.i th* pmvisioni of the City of Lockpon Charter and Anicle I l, Title I of the

Real Propenr' 'l'ax l-aw of the Stare of New Yr:rk; and

l4'iilRf"4s, thc provision-s of said lar.v authorize and empower tax districts having

rln inlcrcsl in various palcels to enter into an agreement making provisions ftrr

conveyame ofsaid parcels without public sale. and upon such terms as said districts may

agrce upon helN,cen themselves; and

,lGRRTJM[:N'I'

\'HEREAS,lhe parties hereto havc conferrcd and negotialed as to the melhod of
handling the var:ious parcels included in said action"

ld?ll., TIIEREqORE, in consideration of the covenants and agrecments

hereinalicr set larth in the performtmcc of which each of the parties agrees and consents,

the panies hereto do agree a.s follows:

l. Provided that nr: answer is fited by an individual or any other ta"r district
relating to a parcel, th'e CITY and COTINTY oonsent thal a sale al public auction be

waived and thal l.lie Court shall, in its discrelion, dispense with sale and direct the City
T're{surer to mnlie ard execute lo the CI'IY a eonveyance cll all parcels as to which no

answer, o$rer dran the answer of the COUNTY, is interposed, which conveyance shall

vesr in CITY a lee simple absolute title subjeet to thc rights a d interest of COIINTY as

$et tbrlh ir thi$ Agre€menl,

?. Upon delivery of such conveyance, lhe CITY shall, within a reasonable

time, make relsilnable eflorts to sell said parcels so conveyed, at public auction for cash,

or in its discrelio[, 10 sell at private sale, provided the terms and condilions of such
private sale shall be submi$ed to and approved by the COUNTY. Upon delivery of such
conveyanr:e, the CIT Y shall advortise said parcels for s*le as soon as practicable.

3. The inlererits of $e CITY and COUI'{TY in eash parcel or in the proceeds

of the sale thereof shall be that proportion of thc parcel or proceeds of the saje thereof
rhat the unpaid taxes, tax liers and olher charges assessablc againsi the parcels owed to or

1

s
s

$
I



o$xcd b! the Cfl\ and COUNTY respecrively beat t'ci.the lotal CITY and COIJN1'Y

urqcs rnc{ rax li{:ns in ur,".""* *a'nt}r*i .iarges unpai<l anti assessable aeainst 9a9! 131cel'

;;;;*p-;-- ;;-r- of calculallng r'he otf"liut interesLs of the CIIIY gnd ColJl{TY in

r.ich parcel rrr in the rtisuihutiJ;f ;;;;"tis thcrcof' no penalties or interest shall be

cotrlputed r:n any- unpaid 1a< or tax licn'

4. 'l'he date to delemine the respcctive interests or lisns of the CI'IY and

t-'OL-$iTY and the amounts the;;f' shall be the date of conveyance to the CITY'

5."I}eCITYshallcollecttlreproceedsofsale,andafterdcductingSchool
l'ax*s for the City of i-ockport i"lt""i a-i*i" *nich thc CITY ha's oaid pursuant to Rcal

Propertl: Ta,r Lax Secrion 1332' in addition to ary taxes 
-or 

t"*ttttnt" which CITY

ma,v have paid thile ttf" ro *v'p**i was in rhe CITY' and so afler deducting the

d:isbursements of this action, u'i.iirtln*ri in"i"a" the filing and recording ftcs' actual title

sealc.hes, charges incurreti, ,"rtiii"ution ot topies of deliiquent tax lists' special guardian

allosance" cost of publishing ;i;;;;;-;;;JJ"em' publishing of the lists of parcels for

sale b.".. *re CITY, and th* 
""n 

;iN;; Y"rh Stale Transfer i'* tn b" allixed on deeds

resulting lrom such .ute' tt. ,ui-' "i Sso'oii per parcel for cosls of collection' and any

*ther necessary cr')st incurred, and unless fuli tax pa1'ments c-an be made ro CITY and

COl"lN-fY from lhe proceeds 
"f 

if* t"f", tf"-U aisttiUute *r3 1et lt"*:S-b-l1?:i:1
-i Co''-f:f V in thc agrecd proportion Any surplus remaining flom ttte procceds ol me

salc of cach parcel after p"ytt"ii 
"i "rf 

t* liens io the Cll'Y and COUNTY' shall be the

nrorxrtv of rhe ClfY' The CfiV-tf'aff p*tiae the COLNTY wirh an accounting of lhe

procecis of salc upon completion thereof'

6. "lhe provisions olrhe Real Property'I'ax Law ofthe State ofNew York as

nort in 
"tf"ct 

rr as hereinafrer amended shall deiermine when and if parcels remaining

*roiJUy rhe CI fY shall be placed on the assessmeRl roll'

?. Shoutd any parcel ol properry remain unsold by. CITY at the 
"19. "'f Y",

12r yean'frorn rhc date oi convEyancc to lhc CITY' rhe-CIIY shall' during the trurd year

afier sard dat. advenisc ana notO a public auction of each parcels and sball 
-distribute

;;;-;;t sale in rhc agrecd pioponions:-g]TY 1n3v: 
at irs sole discretion' relain

-o-.pl< fnr mrrnicinal DurDose; provide'd that CiTY fumish the COUNTY TREASURER

fi,ff;;;ffii,t* irr"?iii';. relaining such parcels with a srarement of anticipated

use.

8. l.lpnn the expiration of the third year lrom the date of conv€yance to

CITY. ;l *" ,ight' rltte anilnteresr of the COUnTy for urpaid raxes eIi1lg.p"ot to

thc above datc of conveyan"" * tft" CITY' shalt crase and tire COUNTY shall have no

funher intercst io *v p**f* rft* L*oi*og unsold-- and no further interest in the

#oA* of .uf 
" 

of any parcel thereafter sold by the Cifi'

9. CITY shall nor permit any pa:ccl !o be removed bom such list of

dclinquent taxcs bv wav ";;;tili;; #:-*t 61 rcdernndon or ot}erwise upon

which thcre a:e unpaid CoICi;;-ii** iotir *""it'ing wrinen notice from &e County

s



10. lianl.arswer should be interposed in the acti.n in renr ot.her thar by the
couNTY. ns a resul{ of which ir shall bc nec{:sssry that judgnrent in said action ri-irect
(hel thr:re be a sale ar pubric auctio, by rlc Treasurer olth. irry, rhe proceeds of sale,
less an am{.!urt equal to dre total cosrs of adve*ising and all orher disbursements incurred
in such sale. diviclcd by rhe number ol parcels praced for sale, shall be disributed in
accordcnce with the merhod ofdistribution olproceeds ofsale set lirrth hercinabove.

. _l 
l. The provisions of diis agreement sball relate ta antj be binding upcin the

parties herero in reference to rhe ln Rem Action. under Inclex No. Erez*1p{ru.' ,* tn"
farcclosue ofccrtain tar liens fbr rhe year ?023.

12. This Agreement n:*y be nodified or amended only by written instrument,
duly esecuted by rhe aurhr:rized oflrcer of eacb oflhe parties hereto,'a-s authorized by the
City Council i:f l.,ockpol.t and the Niagara County Legislature.

l:. 'lhi' 
agre'en.rcnt niay tre execuled in any number cf counterparts and each such

{ounterplu1 shall be dcemed to be an original. but ar of which, whln aken together, shall
conslilule ene agrcement.

J rrasurer that saris{hciory u,rangements for payment of such COI.JN'I'Y tar liens have
hct'n rnltlc

lSisnature nssec io followl

IN WITNI'SS WHI:REOF,, the CITy ard COUNTy have execured this
Agn;"emenl ihe day and ycar firs1 aboye writt€n.



Dale:

ATT€ST:

t' "-gM"*(Ciry Cledl

CITY OF LOCK}ORT, NEW YORK

Mayor

te frfir
eourcel

ciry
F'

5



o"-' L/qao ef-
ATTEST: COUNTY OF NIAOARA,NEW YORK

Chairman, Niagara County

r@
$tfi-ao-t'€

6



b

City of Lockport - Resolution Request Form

Asenda Description' YOUth PfOgfam FU nding

rresented nv: p pQ Date submitted f 6 1 26 1 2025
Topic AIea {Select Most Applicable Option):

Community lvent
Budget Amendment
Contract Approval

Donation Acceptance

Grant Application 1 Award
Fund Utilization Request

Local Law Change

Community Development
Community Event

Engineering Process

Code and Planning

Other

r
t:

Pkds ptsvide to Ad}* dt lerst 
'B!gg!gf-!!W 

p.ior to Cauhcll meeting. athe{titz requeta wtt! go ao lolowing meeting.

o increase ihe Youth And rec program budget to cover additional expenses.

Explanation of Attachmentsl

1 )Resolution 2)Youth Funding Breakout

be releared publically, ple:s€ denote a ch.ckin thir field:

Notes?

Name: Date of Approval:



Youth Program Funding

Whereas the Common Council previously authorized funding in support of the 2025
Summer Youth Programming at Willow Altro Park through a Memorandum of
Agreement with The Kenan Center, YWCA of Niagara, and Niagara County Youth
Mentoring Services via resolution 052825.1 1 ; and

Whereas the City has identified a portion of unutilized funds in A.8510.54510
(Community Beautification) that may be reallocated to support thi$ initiative; and

Now therefore be it resolved, thai the FY 2A25 budget be amended as follows.

Expendiiures

lncrease

4.7140.54055 Professional Services $4550

Decrease

4.8510.54510 Program Expenses $4550



s 2.600

$ 455,



1
Citv Clerk

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Dawn Lambalzer < lockportinbloom@yahoo.com >

Monday, June 30, 2025 5:55 PM

Sarah Lanzo

IEXTERNAL] Lockport in Bloom 2025

June 30, 2025

Kevin Kirchburger, Alderman at Large
Common Council, and Sarah K Lanzo, City Clerk
One Locks Plaza
Lockport NY 14094

Re: Lockport in Bloom July 2025

Would you please place our request for the following on the next meeting agenda of the Common
council:

1 . We respectfully request permission to hold the the 22nd annual Lockport in Bloom garden walk on
the weekend of July '1 1th , 6- 10pm 12th 1oa-4p,13th 10a-4p

2. We Respectfully request permission to place 3 signs advertising this event in 3 city parks
, Children's Memorial park on Transit rd, Locust st park, and lda Fritz park. Each sign in a garden
bed as to be unobtrusive to mowing.

ln the past 21 years through the generosity of our local sponsors, and the support of our local elected
representatives we have grown this event and now celebrate two decades sharing the love of
gardening in our community. We project an estimated 1500 visitors to Lockport over the 3 days to
enjoy the nearly 3 dozen open gardens that participate .

Thank you for your consideration:
The Bloom Committee:
Dawn and Kyle Lambalzer



I
City Clerk

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

BCS < bbpitcher@gmail.com >

Monday, June 30, 2025 6:38 PM

City Clerk
Re: FW: [EXTERNALI Outlvater baseball field fall usage

Yes, that is correct. Saturdays in September from 9:30 AM-lPM. We are part of WNY MLINY AA - Buffalo
MSBL - the group that is using the field midweek currently.

On Mon, Jun30,2025 at 8:3 6 AM City Clerk <g4ygl_9rk@legkpertny€Oy> lvrote:
Good moming Brian,

I'11 add your request to the Agenda for the next Common Council meeting.
What is the name of this group?
And to confirm you're requesting use for the 4 Saturdays in September from
9:30am - 1:00pm. Conect?

Emily Stoddard
City Clerk
Phone: (716) 439-6674
Fax: (716) 439-6702
cityclerk@lockportnv. eov

---Original Message-----
From: cdimmick@lockpqrrtnygov <Sdtrnrntek@!,ApkpgrtqlCSy>
Sent: Sunday, Jlune 29,2025 4:56PM
To:'City Clerk' <s{yq!Clk@lask!A4sy.gev>;'Paula Halladay'
<phrsvit@laqLpertny.Cay>;'Mayor John Lombardi' <jlambadi@lgskpa{ny€av>
Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] Outwater baseball field fall usage

---Original Message-----
From: Brian Scholtisek <b!pl!gb9rr@gq4i!qe!q>
Sent: Friday, June27,2025 9:37 AM
To: Clayton Dimmick <SdimlS&k@lAckpeltny,gey;; clandry@lockportny.eov; David
Davidson <ddavidson8 8 72@vaho
Subject: IEXTERNAL] Outwater baseball field fall usage

Similar to last year, we would like to use the Outwater baseball freld on
Saturday momings from September 6 thru September 27. Field usage time from
9:30am thru lpm.
David, games would start at 10:30am and we would need 1 umpire. Thanks.



I

Resolution Authorizing a Memorandum of Agreement with the Department Head Association
Regarding Accrued Leave Time for Clayton Dimmick

Whereas, the City of Lockport and the City of Lockport Department Head Association are
parties to a collective bargaining agreement that remains in effect through December 31,2026;
and
Whereas, it was discovered that Department Head Association member Clayton Dimmick has
accrued significant balances of unused vacation, personal, and sick leave; and
Whereas, the City and the Association have reviewed the matter and reached an agreement to
resolve these issues in a manner that addresses Mr. Dimmick's accrued time and ensures
adherence to City policy going forward; and
Whereas, the City and the Association wish to document their mutual understanding through a

Memorandum of Agreement; now, therefore, be it
Resolved, that the City of Lockport hereby approves the attached Memorandum of Agreement
with the Department Head Association regarding the accrued leave time and vacation buyback
eligibility of Clayton Dimmick; and be it further
Resolved, that the Mayor and Corporation Counsel are authorized to execute the attached
Memorandum of Agreement on behalf of the City; and be it further
Resolved, that the FY 2025 General Fund operating budget is amended as follows to reflect the
associated vacation buyback expense:

Expenses

lncrease:
A.1490.51010
A.1490.58010
A.1490.58050

Decrease:

A.1900.54775

Full-Time Wages

FICA

Retirement

Contingency

57,4e7
Sst+
S1087

S9,1s8



2025 Vacation Buvback

2024 Vacation Buvback

10

10

8ol S 47.3s

8ol S 46.36

5 3,788

5 3,709

7 .65%

7 .65%

5 289.77

s 283.74

L4.50%

14.50%

s s49.23
s 537.81

)ays Hours Rate* Total FICA Retirement SUM

5 q,azt
5 4,s31

7 ,497 573.5L 5 i.,087.04



/0

City of Lockport - Resolution Request Form

Agenda Descriptio"' 200 yr An n ivefsa ry Cel ebfatiO n Fi feWOfkS

Presented ev' Mike TUCkgf Date submitted:7 17 125
Topic Area (Select Most Applicable Optionl:

Community Event
Budget Amendment
Contract Approval

Donation Acceptance

Grant Application / Award
Fund Utilization Request

Local Law Change

Community Development

Highways and Park
Engineering

Code and Planning

Other

Ptedtc ptovide to CIe* ot le6t ggEEryJDt pior to Cout cil meeting. (tthetwise rcqust wi go to Ntow,,V meetiv.

Summary of Resolution:

200 Anniversary committee would like to host a fireworks display on september 24, 2025
which will be shot off on the top of Gooding street. We will use Young Explosives which the
city has used previously.

We are asking for Pine Street bridge to be closed for the display

The committee will get all necessary permits and coordinate with LPD and LFD

Explanation of Attachments:

ninutes, emalls, etc.., lf any
be released publically, please denote. checkin thisfieH:

Notes:

Name: Date of Approval:



t0

June 10, 2025

Mayor John Lombardi & Members of the Common Council
Lockport Municipal Building
One Locks Flaza
Lockport, NY 14094.

Dear Mayor Lombardi & Common Council Members:

The Lockport Erie Canal Bicentennial Committee is developing an exciting series of
special events during the week of September 21 in order to cornmemorate the 200th
Anniversary of the completion of the Erie Canal.

On Vlbdnesday, September 24, Lockport will be the frst port of call fot lne Canal Boat
Seneca Chiet , as the replica vessel redeates the cross-state ioumey on the Erie Canal
undertaken in 1825. For this purpose, we would like to use the pine Street Bridge as a
public viewing area as the Seneca Ciiefaffives in the Lockport Locks at approximately
6 PM. The reception on the Pine Street Bridge is scheduled to take place fom 5-8 pM,
follo,tred by a spectacular fireworks display €t approximately 8:30 pM. ln this regard, the
Canal Bicentennial Committee requests that the City of Lockport close off vehicular
traffc on the Pine Street Bridge from 5 - I PM on that date and that an open-carry
provision be in ef{ect for this period of time.

Closure of the Pine street Bridge wiH.faoititste pedestrian lraffe from tfie fiorth side of
ihe Lockport Locks to the south side. Local businesses, including Stooges at 2 Street
and the Locktender at 4 Lock street are supportive of this temporary closure to assure
that the Seneca Cf,rbf receives a warm Lockport welcome. The Lockport Erie Canal
Bicentennial Committee will cover the cost of the fireworks display, and is requesting
that the City of Lockport provide the required liability insurance for the evening's
festivities.

Thank you for your consideration of our request.

;"#"/.
Lockport Erie Canal Bicentennial Committes

4tr)'* t,q


